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PREFACE

HE Merchants’ and Manufacturers’ Club, in submitting this work to a critical
and, it is to be hoped, an indulgent publie, does so with the sole purpose in wview
of placing before the observant eye the wvast and rapidly growing interests of

the city.

In writing of the elements which malke Columbia of today what she is, the endeavor
has been to avoid the extravaganza style generally indulged in, the object being to print
a concise “resume” of the healthy conditions of her commerce, and particularly of the
manufacturing, wholesale and retail trade, presenting in connection therewith a slight
sketch of her wonderful natural resources as a commercial center.

The Secretary of the Club, Mr. 8. A. Pearce, will be glad to correspond with persons

desiring information in regard to the city.

THE MERCHANTS AND MANUFACTURERS' CLUB.




TO THOSE BUSINESS MEN

HROUGH whose energy and progressive ability is due the rapid
advancement of Columbia to one of the foremost places among the
great commercial and industrial centers of the South; whose acts

of enterprise and deeds of liberality have adorned her with great mercan-
tile establishments, factories and warehouses, magnificent and beautiful
residences, churches, schools and benevolent institutions; who have acted
by deed, “not with words,” placing their shoulder to the wheel of progress
in the hour of need, this publication is inscribed by

THE COMPILER.
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COLUMBIA

EARLY HISTORY.

OLUMBIA, the Capital and center of the State, is situated on the east of the early secttlers of the State. This wise action united the people from the

side of the Congaree River, near the junction of the Saluda River
with the Broad. Her population in 1890 (U. S. Census) was

15,343, the present popu-
lation (estimated) is about
30,000. The State Capitol
building, built of granite,
is situated on a command-
ing site near the center of
the city. Resting on the
Congaree hills, 850 feet
above sea level, with miles
of broad streets and ave-
nues, shaded with rows of
beautiful trees, it is said by
many to be one of the
most beautiful cities in the
Southland.

Possessed of an attract-
ive and healthful climate,
soil and surroundings, at
the head of navigation on
the Congaree River, she
possesses many elements of
natural growth and pro-
gress.

Capitol in its present po-
sition, were skillfully
blended the elements of
progress, pluck and vigor
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mountains to the seaboard, andj made the State a potent factor in all the
political struggles of the United States in her succeeding history; Columbia

has been a conspicuous
example of the result of
this action, she being the
keystone of this union,
holding together the va-
rious interests of the State
and directing her energies
in one channel. The influ-
ence of the State, moulded
principally at her various
educational institutions,
has extended throughout
the South to the confines
of Mexico. In 1832, dur-
ing the period of nullifica-
tion, there frequently met
in the city a coterie of
brilliant philosophers,
statesmen and orators,
such men as Cooper, Har-
per, Hamilton, McDuffie
and Preston, forming a gal-
axy of splendid intellect sel-
dom equalled in any coun-
try; and the same can be
said of Columbia of today.

Tradition says that the
first site selected for the



location of the city was at Granby, which was then quite a thriving trading post.
Failing to put the town at Granby, the present site was selected, and the land
on which it stands was bought from Col. Thomas Taylor and James Taylor.

MAIN STREET FROM CAPITOL STEPS.

On the 20th of March, 1786, the General Assembly entered on a joint
election for five commissioners, “for the purpose of purchasing lands, etec., for
the building of the Town of Columbia thereon;”” and on that day four of these
commissioners were elected, viz: Com. Alexander Gillen, Gen. Richard
‘Winn, Hon. Richard Hampton and Col. Thomas Taylor. On the next day Mr.
Justice Pendleton was elected, thus filling up the commission. The gentlemen
thus appointed by the General Assembly to “Purchase lands and for the
building of the Town of Columbia thereon,” discharged the duty imposed upon
them by the Legislature, and reported their action in proper form. In the
same year, 1786, the Gieneral Assembly passed the Act constituting Columbia
as the Capital of the State. The selection was a happy one; standing as it did
on middle ground, easily accessible from all parts of the State. The old inhabi-
tants of the city often pointed out the oak tree, standing on the corner of Green
and Main streets, as the spot where the Commissioners met — called then
Vinegar Hill. The first court and jury that ever sat in Richland county sat
under the old oak tree. The Steward’s Hall at the College of Carolina is
also near the place. The surveyor and his company both did their work well
in laying out the city, for no city in America is more beantifully laid out, the
plan of the city being like a large chess-bourd.

~ seal,” ete.

In 1710 an Act of the General Assembly was passed to found a free school
for the inhabitants of South Carolina. In 1728 it was proposed to establish a
“college,” the first occasion on which this term was used. The Great Dictator
of the State, John Rutledge, digested a plan for a State College about this
time, and many Acts of the Legisluture contemplated putting some such
plan into operation ; but it was not until 1801 that the measure began to take
definite shape. In his message that year Governor Drayton recommended that
“n State College be raised and fostered by its hand at Columbia, or some central
and healthy spot of the State, under proper directors and trustees;” and in
that year an Act was passed establishing this time-honored institution. In
1805 it was opened with Jonathan Maxcey, the great teacher and preacher,
as its president, and Professor Hanford as the only other member of the
faculty. From this small beginning the college has moved onward until it has
become the pride and honor of the State.

Until the year 1805, the town was under the direct government of the
Legislature, as Washington is under that of the Cougress of the United States;
but in that year an Act was formed creating it “a corporation, called by the
name of the Corporation of the Town of Columbia, which shall have a common
By this Act the municipal powers of the town were vested in one
Intendant and six Wardens, to be elected by the citizens.

A VIEW OF BLANDING STREET,

The city continued under the government ot an Intendant and Wardens
until 1854, when by Act of the Legislature the name was changed from that

8



of the Town of Columbia to that of the City of Columbia, and it was given
a Mayor.

In point of fact the Legislature met in Columbia first in 1790, but met
for the first time after the adoption of the Constitution in 1791. It was during
its session in the latter year thut many.of the State’s most important laws were
enacted, and many fundamental changes made. The year was also made
memorable by the visit of President George Washington to the city.

MANUFACTURING FACILITIES.

O manufacture successfully it is plainly evident that the point where tl:c
raw materials accumulate naturally and are easily accessible, and
where, at the same time, there

s cheap power and ample facilities
for marketing the manufactured pro-
duct, that point is pre-eminently the
favored one. Columbia
offers extraordinary advan-
tages for manufacturing.
Directly tributary are all
the clements that are nec-
essary for the making of a
successful manufacturing
center. There are large
tracts of land that can be
secured by rental or pur-
chase, upon easy terms, di-
rectly contignous to abun-
dant transportation facili-
ties. Labor is cheap and
abundant; living is eco-
nomical ; the climate is healthy.
Abundant transportation facilities,
by means of her network of rail-
ways radiating to all points of commerce, and water
transportation to the sca by means of the Congaree,
now to be opened by the U. S. Government. With
anrivalled water power as offered by her canal system,
rich in capital, strong in credit, untrammeled by

GRANBY COTTON MILLS.,

debt, with small taxation, light municipal expenses and, at the present, cheap

real estate, no city in the union offers more advantages to the large or small

manufacturer than does Columbia of today. The manufacturer who locates

in Columbia will find everything at hand for the successtul furtherance of
his enterprise, and a friendly and helping hand will be extended him by
every citizen of the community. Columbia has the raw cotton at her very
doors, and possesses unusual advantages for the manufacture of cotton yarns
and cotton products; being a large market, a buyer has the opportunity of
selecting just the quality desired. The humidity of climate is particularly
advantageous, and with cheap cotton, cheap water power, cheap labor, and the
best of shipping facilities, there is no locality in the United States that can
surpass, and few that can equal her as a cotton manufacturing center. There
are now in successful operation here the following cotton mills: Columbia
Hosiery Mills, 400 machines; J. M. Graham, Manager; Product — Cotton
Hosiery. Columbia Mills Co.; capital $1,000,000; 30,000 spindles; F. P.
Carpenter, President; C. K. Oliver, Treasurer and Agent; Produ-t—Cotton
Duck. Granby Cotton Mills; capital $800,000; 64,000 spindles, 1,560 looms;
‘W. B. Smith Whaley, President; Wm. H. Rose, Treasurer; B. F. Barnes,
Superintendent; Product—=80x84-39 inch Sheetings and 64 x64-38% inch
Print Cloths. Richland Cotton
Mills; capital $150,000; 13,000
spindles, 720 looms; W. B.
Smith Whaley, President; J. S.
Moore, Treasurer; B. I, Barnes,
Superintendent; Product —
Twills and Fine Sheetings. Pal-
metto Cotton Mills; capital
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$125,000; 10,000 spindles, 250 looms; Allen Jones, President and Treasurer;
W. P. Roof, Secretary; Ira R. Hayes, Superintendent; Product—Welts and
other Dress Goods, Piques, Bedford Cords, Nainsooks, Checks, etc. And now
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PALMETTO COTTON MILLS.

being built: Capital City Mills Co.; capital $100,000. Olympia Cotton Mills;
capital $1,500,000; 100,000 spindles, 2,600 Draper looms; Prodnct— Print
Cloths; Organized May, 1899; W. B. Smith Whaley, President.

In addition to her cotton mills, Columbia has in successful operation a
large cotton compress, two fertilizer factories, two cotton seed oil mills, two
complete iron works, two large brick manufacturing plants, two high-class
carriage manufactories, an ice company, a marble works, two immense granite
quarries, and numerous smaller manufacturing industries, such as laundries,
bottling works, broom factory, oil company, wood-working, sash, door and
blind, and others. The published statement of the Secretary of State for South
Carolina, showing the number of charters granted during the year of 1899,
puts Richland county in the lead of all other counties in the state in the matter
of capitalization. Richland county virtually means Columbia, for the new
enterprises capitalized (amounting to $1,910,000) are located in the suburbs
of the city.

In concluding this .article. on Columbia’s manufacturing faeilities we
desire to present a resume of one of her great natural facilities for generating
driving power for the use of the manufacturer, and to state that any desired
information relative to the interests of the city will be cheerfully furnished by
the Secretary of the Merchants’ and Manufacturers’ Club upon application.

THE COLUMBIA CANAL.
GREAT WATER POWER.

S. A. PEARCE.

HE Columbia Canal was constructed by the State of South Carolina to
facilitate navigation from the upper portion of the State to Columbia
and the sea. The Congaree river was navigable for steamboats as far

up as Granby, three miles below the city. Broad river was navigable for pole
boats carrying fifty or more bales of cotton. These boats passed through the
canal and landed their freight at Columbia’ and at Granby, where it was
trans-shipped on board of steamboats for Charleston. Upon the introduction
of railroads the canal was gradnally abandoned.

The canal was sold by the State in 1869 to Northern manufacturers, who
organized a company with a capital of $250,000 to develop a large water power
for manufacturing purposes. The company, after expending a large sum of
money in this enterprise, became financially involved in the panic of 1878, and

[

OLYMPIA COTTON MILLS.

were forced to suspend operations in Columbia. The canal was transferred
to the State Canal Commissioners by.its owner upon his being guaranteed the
perpetual use of 500 horse-power of water power of the canal.
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fl The State commenced work on the canal on April 11,1882, and expended
thereon up to October 11, 1886, the sum of $130,705.68.

Under an Act of the General Assembly, dated December 24th, 1887, the
canal with all its appurtenances was transferred to trustees for the City of

COLUMBIA CANAL POWER HOUSE—Columbia Duck Mills in Distance.

Columbia, who issued canal bonds to the amount of $200,000. The city
guaranteed the interest on the bonds. This sum, with an additional sum
of $60,000, was expended for further improvements on the canal, which
was enlarged to the width of 150 feet and to the depth of 10 feet. The
power developed is estimated at 12,000 -horse-power.

In 1891 the canal was sold to a syndicate, who organized a company
with a capital of $600,000. This company have put in an electric power
plant and are furnishing electric power for the Columbia (Duck) Mills and
the Granby and Palmetto Cotton Factories. The Olympia Cotton Mill
will, when completed, require 8,000 horse-power to drive its machinery.
There remains a considerable power to be utilized, and an additional
5,000 horse-power can be obtained by improving the Saluda river power
near Columbia. Electric power can be profitably transmitted from the
locality to Columbia and its vicinity.

Electric. power is furnished by the Columbia Water Power Company -
at very reasonable rates. These advantages, combined with competitive
rates of transportation by railroad and by river, will make Columbia a
great manufacturing and commercial city.

The President of the Columbia Board of Trade said in an address delivered
to the Board January 1st, 1887: ¢ This water power, when utilized, will add
ten millions of taxable property to the State, in mills, machinery, operatives,
houses, etc., to say nothing of the increased value which such enterprises would
give to city property.” The millions now invested in these euterprises in and

-near Columbia show that this prediction was well-founded.

WHOLESALE AND RETAIL TRADE.

HESE branches of Columbia’s business interests continue to increase
yearly, for her merchants never lose an opportunity to enter into new
fields. The increase in the year of 1899 has been unprecedented in the

commercial history of the city, and there is every reason to believe the building
of the Seaboard Air Line extensions and connections here, together with the
new through connections which will be opened thereby, will afford her mer-
chants rare opportunity of an increase in their territory, of which they will
be quick to take every advantage. Columbia’s jobbing trade now extends

VIEW OF COLUMBIA CANAL.
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into Georgia, South Carolina and North Carolina, and instances are becoming
frequent of the successful trips of her traveling men into the states of Virginia
and Tennessee. This appertains merely to her jobbers, as her manufactured
products range the world over. The following is a comparative statement of
the tonnage brought into Columbia for delivery to her merchants.

1897 1898 To Sept. 30, 1899

SOUTHERN RAILWAY............... 78,923 70 506 57,907
. 1897 1898 To June 20, 1899

ATLANTIC CoAST LINK............. 31,192 28,876 40,146

The above statement does not show the Fall business for 1899, which was
greater than any previous year; for instance, the monthly statement of the

RICHLAND COUKTY COURT HOUSE.

Southern Car Service Association shows that there was 1,954 cars handled
at Columbia during the month of October, and the tonnage in November and
December was even larger. One of the best evidences of the material growth
of a city is to be found by comparison of the receipts and expenditures ot its
postal department.

The government postoffice building in Columbia is one of the finest public
buildings in the South. Mr. J. F. Ensor, the Postmaster, gives the public us
good postal service as the postoffice department at Washington will permit
him to give, and but few complaints come to his office. His report for 1898-99
shows the increase of the business of the postoffice for the past year. There
was issued at the postoffice at Columbia during the year 1899 money
orders to the value of $78,657.98, and for the same period there was

12

disbursed-$150,5637.70 to parties presenting orders payable at the same office.
The following comparative table will show the receipts at the Columbia
postoffice for the years 1897-98-99, ending December 31st. .

1897 1898 1899
PosTAL DRPOSITS ....uvvvnnnn $24,308.60 $23,869 11 $26,086.48
SALE OF STAMPS.........cnu.. 29,019.99 31,819.98 34,280.08
TOTALE. « s susisanedin $53,328.59 $54 188.09 $60,366.56

Mr. Eugene A. Webster, Collector of Internal Revenue, furnishes the
following comparative statement of collections:

Comparative Statement of Collections Made in the District of South Carolina From the Years
ending June 30th, 1895, to June 30th, 1899. '
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Year ended June 30, 1895.|5 8,690.57($48.515 07§ 2,918.07(S 2 080 41 $20.710.98( ................ $ 4,607.55 | $87,522.65
Year ended June 30, 1896.] 10.268 06| 74,820 57| 2.795.11| 3,723.10 12,887.52] vevevver | veennnns 4,209 80| 108,204 16
Year ¢nded June 30 1897.] 7,770.25( 63292 48] 2,433.82) 3 8,2.97 0,657 22| ..oevirn | cannnnn 3,335.24| 93,350.47
Year ended June 30, 1898.1 7,455.45 94.981.78| 2334 69| 3945.77 18,213.93/8 1,800.60|$ 145.00 2364 44 131,203.66
Year ended June 30, 1£99 | 12.991.65]122.868.13] 3,509 35 639.09] 82.970.35| 98 435.41{ 6,414.30| 6,386.27| 284,274.15

U. S. POSTOFFICE,

COTTON.
) Total receipts of cotton-for the year 1897-98, 40,088 bales; total receipts for
1898-99, 44,042. Average price of strict middling cotton 1898-99 to January
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17th, 51 cents; average price of strict middling cotton 1899-1900 to January
17th, 71 cents.

Cotton exported from Columbia in 1898-99, about 50 per cent. of the
receipts. Exports for 1899-1900 to January 17th, none, the cotton liaving
been taken by the local mills.

MASONIC TEMPLE,

BANKING AND FINANCE.

OLUMBIA has reason to point with pride to its banking and kindred
institutions. Through national and world-wide disorders and panics
these institutions have, by their careful and conservative methods,

progressed steadily, and established themselves on an enviable basis. To their
care, protection and distribution is confined the capital which “sustains its
commerce, supports its manufactures, and rewards the labor of its toiling
multitude.”

The city is the bunking center of a large section of country, rich in
natural resources, abounding in fertile lands, and conducting large and varied
interests. A few years ago the deposits in Columbia banks were barely a
million; today they are two and one-half millions of dollars, which, with the
addition of their capital and surplus, make a total of three and one-half
millions. These figures are exclusive of the State Bunk & Trust Company, a
company lately chartered and which in all probability will be in operation
within the next sixty days. The following figures give the statements of the
various banks, those of the Farmers and Mechanics being given in rouund

figures.
Surplus and Un-

Capital. divided Profits. Deposits. Grand Total.
Carolina National........ $100,000 $152,175.40 $970,203.71 $1,222,879.11
Central National......... 100,000 40,050.62 442 034 58 582,085.20
Bank of Columbia....... 50.000 12,900.00 279,540 00 342,440.00
Loan and Exchange...... 150,000 49,143.28 843,397 28 1,042,540.66
Farmers and Mechanics .. 50 000 10,000.00 175,000 00 235 000.00
Totals.......... $450,000 $264,275.80  $2,710,175.57 $3,424,444.97

In addition to Columbia’s regularly organized banks there are several
large and well conducted Loan and Trust and Land and Investment Com-
panies, whose capital stock if taken into cousideration would largely increase
the capital stock as mentioned above.

CENTRAL NATIONAL BANK.

REAL ESTATE.

HE increasing business -in real estate in Columbia has emanated
purely from legitimate sources, supplemented by the fact that the
remarkable increase in population during the past ten years has com-

pelled property owners to erect block after block of residences to meet the
demand for homes on the part of the community. It has therefore been' a
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healthy growth, an expansion by reason of the fact that the entire interests
of the city have been making great strides in the march of progress and
development. Another inducement for property owners to build is the low
tax rate. There has been no false enhancement of values; it has therefore

THE STATE BANK AND TRUST CO.

been a healthy growth, among the more gratifying results ot which are to
be seen the gradual increase in the value of suburban property. While the
tendency in building has been towards homes, yet building in the business
heart of the city has by no means been neglected, any number of fine, modern-
built structures having been erected on the line of the principal thoroughfares.
Around the outer edges of the city, contiguous to the various lines of railways,
there has been’ erected many magnificent structures for manufacturing pur-
poses, and plans have been laid out and ground broken for the erection of
several large plants, which have been lately chartered. In point of fact, the
real estate interests of the city are on a substantial basis, and wherever there
is a demand for property, prices are based on the actual value thereof.

HEALTH, SANITATION AND CLIMATE.

HE health record of Columbia for the past ten years shows to advantage,
The authorities have each year made -liberal appropriations for pre-
serving the city’s health, and Columbia today stands in the front rank

from a sanitary standpoint. The average annual temperature of Columbia
is 68.6. The following table shows the climatic conditions, compiled from the
records of the United States Weather Bureau:

CLIMATOLOGICAL DATA FOR COLUMBIA, S. C.,, FOR THE YEAR 18%9.
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J. W. BAavuEr, Section Director. -

HOMES, STREETS, PARKS, ETC.

HE streets of a city are indices by which the observer quickly measures
the quality of her citizens. - On all sides he-discovers objects of interest
and, if present, of admiration. The impression made upon the traveler

remains with him; these impressions intagliated upon the mind are never

COLUMBIA FEMALE COLLEGE.

erased, and as they go to other cities on pleasure, business, or any other
purpose, they speak their impressions to those around.
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Columbia has many attractions as a city. Her location is everything that
can be desired as a place of residence, and her eligibility as such has exerted
a powerful influence in the development of her natural resources. Her broad
streets and wide business thoroughfares; her gravel and shell roads affording
fine opportunities for driving; her numerous elegant private residences and
fine“public buildings, parks and suburbs, her shaded avenues intersected here
and there with churches, seats of learning, club-houses, societies and halls,
with an excellent market well stocked with all a good housewife may desire;
elegant stores stocked with all the latest fabrics and materials—all combine
to make Columbia an attractive place in which to live. The rents in Columbia
are reasonable; the cost of building reduced to a minimum, and the expense
of living as low as that of any city South, while there are always opportunities

WRIGE Y- ATE

RESIDENCE JULIUS A. WALKER.

offered for employment to skilled artisans and day laborers. The solidity of
Columbia in point of healthy growth—socially, morally, as well as architect-
urally—is perhaps not as fully estimated by the general public as it should be.

THE RICHLAND COUNTRY CLUB.

The Richland Country Club was organized in the spring of 1899, and
soon enrolled one hundred and sixty members. The Club purchased one
hundred and twenty acres of land near Columbia, and laid oft a fine series of
golf links.

The Club House, which has just been completed and furnished, is beauti-
fully situated in the center of the grounds, and commands a view of the whole
surrounding country, affording one of the most pleasant views to be found
about the City of Columbia. The house is large and airy, with café and

kitchen, dressing rooms for ladies and gentlems:n, a large reception room and
an extensive verandah. In the interior there are fitted up elegant modern
bath facilities.

A number of Colum-
bians, both ladies and
gentlemen, play the fas-
cinating game, and the
Club House is a favorite
terminus for driving, rid-
ing and cycling parties
during the golfing season,
which in this delightful
climate includes fall, win-
ter and spring,and a good
part of the summer.

The members are de-
termined that the Rich-
land Club shall stand
among the first in outfit
and attractiveness for both members and visitors. It is expected that many
northern visitors will avail themselves of the fine opportunity here offered
for indulgence in this invigorating and pleasurable sport. They will
be gladly welcomed by
the members to partici-
pation in the delights of
the game. Driving par-
ties will be accommo-
dated with shelter for
their teams. It is confi-
dently expected that this
will soon become one of
the greatest attractions of
an unusually attractive
city and community.

The Club grounds
are conveniently located
upon the line of the Co-
lumbia Electric Railway
Company, and are there-
fore easy of access at all
times to lovers of the sport who may be desirous of availing themselves of the
courtesies of the grounds as extended by the Club.

RESIDENCE J. M. VAN METRE,

RESIDENCE JOHN FITZMAURICE,




EDUCATIONAL.

S an educational center Columbia stands pre-eminent among those

A of the front rank; the cultivation, refinement and social character of

her people make it a desirable community in which to educate children.

Its position as a center of wealth, refinement and culture, give it a high rank,
not ouly in the State, but in the South.

The total number of public schools in the county is 83, with an attend-
ance of 7,088 pupils, requiring the services of sixty-nine first grade and
fourteen second grade teachers.
The cost of maintenance for the
year ending was $34,981.84. These
figures do not include private
educational institutions.

THE SOUTH CAROLINA
COLLEGE.

This fine old institution is
among the oldest educational foun-
dations in the South. It was es-
tablished one hundred years ago,
and numbers among its alumni
many of the most noted names in
the history of the nation. .

It occupies with its buildings
and grounds forty acres of land
in the southeastern part of the City
of Columbia. Twenty acres are
enclosed by a brick wall; within
this enclosure nine large build-
ings, arranged about a quadran-
gle, afford ample accommodation
for its students and faculty. The
quadrangle or ‘‘campus,” as it
has been called for a hundred
years, is grass-covered and shaded by noble trees, some of which saw the first
foundation stone laid. The quiet classic air that should make a great educa-
tional seat is characteristic of these surroundings, one being impressed with
the suitability of the site and the buildings to the uscs of education and
culture. The library is especially attractive, and is stored with the literary
riches of the past; over thirty thousand select volumes are here housed, and
so catalogued and registered as to Le readily available. The laboratories,

E. RUTLEDGE COLLEGE.

CHAPEL.
THE SOUTH CAROLINA COLLEGE.

lecture-rooms, cabinets and collections are the best in the State; the gymnasium
is well equipped; the athletic grounds are not surpassed for comfort and
convenience by any college in the South.

The College from its first opening has been a chief exponent of the
admirable honor system among students, which has done so much to elevate
and purify the tone of Southern college life. The students themselves are the
administrators of this system. The long line of scholars who have honored
and ennobled the history of the College has given to the State and to the
nation a corps of trained minds and noble hearts unexcelled by any other
institution in our land.

The College is just entering
upon its second centenary, with
inviting prospects and widening
opportunities. It needs only the
nourishing care of the State it has
so honorably served to assure it a
future of usefulness and blessing
to the sons and daughters of
South Carolina, and ensure the
benefits of Christian culture to
those who come after.

»"PRESBYTERIAN THEOLOG-
ICAL SEMINARY.

The Seminary was founded
in 1828 by the Synod of South
Carolina and Georgia, which oc-
cupied the territory now embrac-
ing the three Synods of South
Carolina, Georgia and Florida, so
that these other Synods when they
were formed assumed for them-
selves the covenant relations en-
tered into by their forefathers.
The Synod of Alabama eutered
into the same compact in 1857. Dr. Goulding was elected the first professor
in 1828,, and during 1829 taught five students, while continuing his pastorate
in Georgia. In January, 1830, he and his students removed to Columbia.
In January, 1831, the present building was oceupied and Dr. Howe was elected
his co-professor. In 1854 Simons’ Hall was erected through the liberality of
Mrs. E. L. Simons, of Charleston, and in 1855 Mrs. Agues Law, of Columbia,
provided for the erection of the dormitory that bears her name. The Seminary

W. RUTLEDGE COLLEGE.
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occupies a beautiful square of four acres in the heart of the residence portion
of the city, on one of the electric¢ lines, opposite the Presbyterian College for
Women, four squares from Main Street and the same distance from the
Southern depot. The second floor of the central building is used for lecture
rooms, the third floor for the library. This building is flanked by Law Hall
and Simons Hall, the dormitories. These have each twenty-four rooms, com-
modious, well ventilated and lighted. The Chape] is the brick building on the
east side of the square;
the mess-hall is on the
west side.

PRESBYTERIAN COL-
LEGE FOR WOMEN.

The Presbyterian Col-
lege for Women is just
opposite the Presbyterian
Theological Seminary, and
occupies the whole block
on Blanding Street,known
in late years as the Preston
Place, but better remem-
bered in former times as
the Hampton House. The
grounds are embellished
with fountains, ornamen-
tal trees, flowers and shrub-
bery of all kinds, and are
well equipped with croquet
grounds, tennis courts and
other means of healthful
amusement. No school in
the United States has more
beautiful and inviting
pleasure grounds. They
are surrounded on three
sides by a high brick wall,
80 as to give privacy to the students in their hours of exercise and recreation.

The former family mansion, which of late years has been much enlarged
and improved, coutains the drawing room, parlor, reception room, library,
dining and musie rooms, the infirmary, and a few dormitories.

The main building was build for college purposes, and is admirably adapted
to its end. It contains a handsome and commodious auditorium, with two

stories of recitation rooms, all communicating by folding doors, the upper story
forming a gallery for the auditorium on public occasions. In the rear, but
connected with the auditorium, is a large sheltered porch, surrounded by aun
arcade, for exercise in inclement weather. Above the porch is the well
arranged studio. The second and third floors of this building contain the
dormitories for resident pupils. With few exceptions, the rooms are for only
two occupants. There is not a dormitory which is not bathed in sunlight for
one-half the day, morning
or evening. The windows
of the dormitories com-
mand a beautiful and an
attractive view. Every
room is comfortably fur-
nished, lighted with gus
and heated by hot water
pipes. Each floor is sup-
plied with hot and cold
water, bath rooms and first-
class sanitary arrange-
ments.

Science Hall, a few
yards distant from the
other buildings, is appro-
priated to scientitic work.
It contains lecture rooms,
chemical, physical and bio-
logical laboratories, with a
cabinet of valuable geo-
logical specimens.

The College was char.
tered by the South Caro-
lina legislature as the Pres-
byterian College for Wo-

3 el
N i e

PERSBYTERIAN THEOLOGICAL SEMINARY,

17

mien, of Columbia, S. C,,
with the right and author-
ity to confer the usual de-
grees upon its graduates. It was founded by the Presbyterians of this State
to give preparatory and collegiate instruction of the best character to their
daughters. From the first year of its existence it has been patronized
not merely by Presbyterians, but has been largely supported by adherents of
other churches. The institution is now -under the entire control of the
following Board of Directors: Messrs. W. A. Clark, W. J. Dutlie, Jumes



PRESBYTERIAN COLLEGE FOR WOMEN.

BLANDING STREET FRONT.

VIEW IN EASTERN PART OF GROUNDS.

PPy 5

ralh "y
€ % ¥
! o -
‘1,' £ -A-.'-.’u:-._s“.
""‘~‘-"'VT.“- e - 4

- 4;_
. 5 - ‘v o "

BN

e



Allan, J. W. Flinn, W..B. Lowrance, A. H. White, T. 8. Bryan, George H.

Cornellson and John McSween. The present faculty consists of Robert P. Pell,

President, with eighteen able assistants.

The following special features, forming a portion of the governing policy
of the College, are worthy of careful consideration:
1st. The close attention paid to the individual pupil. In order to

accomplish this only seventy boarders are taken,
and an unusually large faculty is employed for
their instruction. «

2d. The home-like tone pervading the insti-

tution. It is the endeavor to make for the pupils
a genuine Christian home. Teachers and pupils

are intimately associated out of the class rooms as

well as within them, and cultivate the most
friendly relations.

3d. The cultivation of the sense of personal
responsibility. The discipline of the school is
based primarily upon a direct appeal to the
conscience.

4th. The full and high grade courses of study.
The young women of the South are aspiring to
a higher standard of scholarship, and are capable
of mastering as extensive and thorough courses
as are offered to our young men.

It is proposed to give them such opportunities
here, and to develop a system of collegiate train-
ing peculiarly adapted to their needs.

The degrees of A.B. and A. M. are conferred
by the College, as is also that of Mus. B. in the
department of music.

The course of instruction offered is embraced
in the preparatory, academic, collegiate, pre-med-
ical, music, art, elocution and physical culture,
and commercial departments.

In addition to the colleges sketched above
the following institutions are located at Columbiu:
Columbia Female College, chartered 1854; Ursu-
line Convent, founded 1858 by Ursuline Sisters;
Allen University, A. M. E., colored, founded 1881;
Benedict College, colored, founded 1870.

JOURNALISM.

OLUMBIA has always given a liberal support to its newspapers, and
Columbia journalism has ever been conspicuous for its strong and

conservative character. The city has always given a liberal ‘support

PRESBYTERIAN COLLEGE FOR WOMEN — Main Dormitory,
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to its newspapers, with the result as shown herewith.

THE DAILY RECORD.

The Daily Record was founded as an after-
noon daily by Geo. R. Koester, April 26th, 1897.
Mr. Koester, who is a young man of much ability
and experience, has since the inception of his
paper enlarged the same from a six-column to a
seven-columa sheet. Under his able manage-
ment “The Record” has steadily kept pace with
the Capital City’s development, and within the
last few months has been organized into a char-
tered company with an authorized -capital of
$10,000. “The Record” is published daily except
Sunday.

Charleston “News and Courier;” branch office;
Col. August Kohn, resident representative and
correspondent.

“The State;” daily and weekly; The State Co.

“The Carolinian;” published at South Caro-
lina College.

“Christian Neighbor;” weekly; S. H. Browne.

“The Way of Faith;” weekly; Rev. Jno. M.
Pike.

“The Church Messenger;” monthly.

TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES.

HE relations to a city of its radiating lines of
T travel will always indicate the measure of
its present and future prosperity. The facili-
ties enjoyed by Columbia for transportation of
passengers and freight, both by rail and water,

" are superior to those enjoyed by but few other

cities; with three great trunk line systems enter-
ing into and departing from her doors through
eleven different lines of route, reaching into and



tapping the most desirous of tributary territory, her future seems bright
indeed. Columbia has in active operation two trunk lines to the seaboard,
three to the Northern and Eastern markets, two to the West and the great
Northwest, and four into Georgia and Elorida. The three largest systems of
the Atlantic Gulf and Southern States center into “The Capital City,” viz:
The Southern Railway, The Atlantic Coast Line and The Scaboard Air Line.
In addition, the advantages she possesses by way of water transportation,
treated upon in the following article, cannot be approximated to their full
value, as they are yet in their infancy as to development.

WASHINGTON STREET METHODIST CHURCH, SOUTH.

CANAL SYSTEM.
COL. S: A. PEARCE.

E would not do justice to the subject of water transportation did we
fail to mention the important part which this State took in providing
water transportation from the interior of the State to the seaboard

by the building of canals connecting with the navigable rivers of the State
before any railroads were built in this country.

It was nearly one hundred years ago when this great work was begun,
and now, in the beginning of a new century, its importance is felt. The rivers

of the State are being opened and our harbors made more accessible for
shipping by the United States Government. It is a work of national impor-
tance which will benefit the whole country.

The Santee Canal was

commenced in 1792 and com-
pleted in 1802, being 22 miles
from Charleston, S. C., and
opening up navigation to
Granby, two and one-half
miles below Columbia, at a
cost of $720,000.

The Winyah Canal, 7.40
miles in length, was built in
the year 1802, The Catawba
Canal, 8.50 miles in length,
was built in 1802. The
‘Wuteree Canal, 4 miles in
length, was built in 1826.
The Saluda, or Columbia Ca-
nal, 6.20 miles in length, was
built in 1826. Drehrs, Loricks and Lockhart Canals were completed in 1825,
The points counected by these canals are as follows: The Santee Canal with
Santee River and Charleston. The Winyah Bay with Kinloch Creek. The
Wateree Canal with
the Wateree River
and Jones Mills and
Elliots Mills. The
Saluda Canal with the
head of Saluda shoals.
Granby Ferry and
Congaree River.
Drehrs Canal was
around the falls of Sa-
luda River. TLoricks
Canal was on Broad
River. Lockharts
Caual was on Broad
River. '

A large amount
of boating was done
on the Columbia Canal. Considerable merchandise was brought down the
Saluda and Broad Rivers and through the Canal to Columbia and to

FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH.

EPISCOPAL CHURCH.,




Granby, where it was transhipped on board of steamers running to
Charlestou.

WATER TRANSPORTATION FOR COLUMBIA.

In 1884 the Columbia Board of Trade took up the subject of reopening
the Congaree River, and the commercial importance of river navigation was
presented to thie Congress of the United States through the officers of the
U. S. Engineer Corps in charge of the river and harbor improvements in
South Carolina. Extracts from the letters of the President of the Board of

ST, PETERS CATHOLIC CHURCH.,

Trade and Mr. Reid Whitford, Assistant Engineer, and from the report of
Capt. W. H. Bigby, of the Corps of Engineers, U. 8. A., give some of the
reasons for asking the appropriation which was made for this work.

Captain Bigby said in his report: “I believe that a due consideration of
the navigable needs and cormercial statistics of this river as shown in my
report of its preliminary examinations will show that it is worthy of national
assistance.

«If the Congaree River were opened to navigation it would probably
receive 130,000 tons of freigut per year.”

21

Extract from the letter of 8. A. Pearce, President ot the Columbia Board
of Trade, to Mr. Reid Whitford, Assistant U. S. Engincer in charge of river
and harbor work at Georgetown, 8. C., dated October 20th, 1884, and made a
' part ot the report to the
Chief of Engineers, U. S.
A., by W. H. Bigby,
Captain of Engineers,
. B, Az

“Columbia has
watched with great in-
terest the work of im-
provement carried on ly
the United States Gov-
ernment below, on the
Santee River and its out-
lets, and gathered fresh
hopes from your visit that
she will be placedin water
communication with the
world. B

“This is the capital of the State, a city containing at least 14,000 inhabi-
ants, and from its Jocation is destined to be the great distributive center of tlie

State. The great water power now being developed by the State will excel that
at Lowell, and when util-

ized, as it is destined to
be in a short period, will
make this city the great
manufacturing center of
the South.

“The great drawback
to some industries in the
State is the lack of cheap
transpoitation. Thereare
immense growths of the
most valuable timber in
the upper parts of the
State, which can be rafted
down Broad River and
find its way to a profit-
able market if it can have i
water transportation from Columbia. There are quarries of granite within
close proximity to the Congaree River, near the city, that could furnish millions

RESIDEKCE M. A, MALOKE,

RESIDENCE M, L. KIRARD.



of tons of rock for jetty work on the South Atlantic coast and the cities
bordering on the coast. The great]cypress swamp below Columbia, which has
an almost inexhaustible supply of this valuable timber. growing upon it, would
turn out from its stagnant
pools that which makes to
the wealth of the nation.
All efforts to utilize this
wood in the manufacture
of shingles and wooden-
ware have failed for want
of cheap transportation
and a convenient outlet.

“To the cypress must
he added a great growth
of hard pine timber, which
will be made profitable to
cut and saw for the

ot markets.
wu&;ﬂm““ .. S “Cheap freights would
o S et e bring settlers to locate

along the river where the
lands, I am informed, are
rich and productive. I mention Senate Street for the present terminus of
boating instead of the old point two and one-half miles below the city. This
would bring the boats up abreast of the city. To stop at Granby would
subject shipperstoahauy -~
of three miles over a bad
road. The landing at
Senate Street would be
but four squares from the
union railroad depot. I
can assure you of the
earnest support of our
Board of Trade in fur-
thering this important
work which will be of
national importance, ben-
efitting the country at
large.” '

Extracts from the report of Assistant Engineer Reid Whitford, dated
October 24th, 1884 :

“The Congaree has its head at the confluence of the Broad and Saluda
Rivers at the City of Columbia, the capital of the State; flowing thence in an

- RESIDENCE J. F. ENSOR.
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easterly direction for fifty or sixty miles it mingles its waters with the Wateree
River and thus forms the Saluda River.

“The Congarce River is crossed at the foot of Gervais Street, Columbia, a
mile or more below its
head, by a through wooden
toll bridge for vehicles,
haviug ten spars resting
on stone abutments, and
piers having a total length
of 1,357 feet. The river
at this point is over 600
feet wide. The width of
the river at ‘Old Granby’
is about 500 feet. Upon
the whole the river is wide
and deep for an up coun-
try stream. Probably in
the improvement of it a
depth of four feet can be
made from its mouth to
Columbia.

“The people express themselves as being extremely anxious for this river
to be opened for navigation, which will give them water transportation
for their freights direct between Columbia and Northern cities via Con.
garee and Santee Rivers,
Mosquito Creek Canal
and Winyah Bay Bar-
They are of the opinion
that four feet, even three
feet, at dead low water
would answer for the safe
navigation of the river.
The Congaree flows

Sy TR through a thickly settled
il s 50 : Y by

RESIDENCE EDWARD EHRLICH,

M fertile farming country,
producing a great deal
of cotton, corn, etc., and
very large areas of the
best timbered lands are
found along its banks.
-“Up to the year 1845 two side-wheel steamers, the John Adams and
Boatwright, drawing four feet, were running on the Congaree between
Columbia and Charleston, but about that time they were taken off the river,

RESIDENCE JOHN B. NORRIS.




and since then the channel has become so obstructed by overhanging trees
and fallen timber that no boats have been able to run. At present there
is no commerce carried on over the river for reasons stated above, but
there would be a large
trade could it be opened
for navigation from Co-
lumbia. That city has a
very large and yearly in-
creasing commerce, and
is situated in the cotton
belt of South Carolina.”

It is 235 miles from
Columbia to the mouth
of the Santee. An im-
portant work in connec-
tion with the river im-
provement is the cutting
of a canal from Santee
River to Winyah Bay. In
a letter to the Secretary
of the Merchants’ and
Manufacturers’ Club of Columbia, dated October 9th, 1899, Engineer
Whitford says:

«Estherville-Mining Creek Canal at present is fifty feet wide and four feet
deep at low water. Its final dimensions will probably be one hundred fect wide
and six deep at low water.

“I would add that
the depth in the canal at
present at high water is
seven or eight feet and
when complcted ten feet.
The navigation of the
Santee and Congaree
Rivers is interrupted at
dead low water by a few
shoals, . which will prob-
ably be removed in the
course of improvement of
these streams.

“The rivers are for
the most part wide and
deep, and excellent for
navigation purposes.”

RESIDENCE DR. F. D. KENDALL.
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The deepening of the Winyah Bay Bar at the entrance of the harbor of
Greorgetown, S. C., will give a depth of fifteen feet of water on the bar at mean
low tide, and twenty-one
feet at high water. A
line of oceansteamers run
regularly between New
York and Georgetown.

Steamboats from Co-
lumbia will connect with
ocean steamers at George-
town and at Charleston,
S. C. It will be inter-
esting to read the fol-
lowing description of the
work required to make
the Congaree River navi-
gable from Granby to
Columbia.

Capt. F. V. Abbott,
Corps of Engineers, U.
S. A.,in his report to the
Chief of Engineers, states
that “The only practicable way this two miles of river can be used is to build
a lock and dam and raise the water level just enough to enable steamers to pass
overtheledges at extreme
low water. A dam and
lock near Granby, which
would raise the low water
level eight feet, would
effect this result.”

There is an admira-
ble site for this purpose,
where there is solid rock
all the way across for a
foundation at such a
depth that a dam about
fifteen feet above the
foundation is needed. A
fixed dam at this point
would overflow a consid-
erable quantity of land
in time of extreme freshet,
and might lay the United
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States open for suits for damages. It would also permanently raise the water
level in the river above it as far up as Gervais Street at all stages. The canal
already built for power purposes now terminates at Gervais Street, but the
owners propose to extend it as far as Granby eventually.

The fixed dam should thus diminish the power head to be derived from
the canal extension. If a movable dam be built the low water levels will be
the only ones affected, as the dam will be lowered as soon as the river rises.
The difterence in cost is not enough to make it advisable to use a fixed dam.
To obtain the most complete and rejiable data for a movable dam at this
point, the Great Kanawha River,

COMMERCIAL BODIES.
THE MERCHANTS’ AND MANUFACTURERS’ CLUB.

HE present officers of the Club, elected since the inception of this work,
are as follows: Colonel Wilie Jones, President; John B. Norrie, First
Vice-President; J. 8. Moore, Second Vice-President; S. A. Pearce,

Secretary; with the following as Governing Committee: R. A. McCreery,
W. J. Murray, Edward Ehrlich, W. H. Lyles, E. W. Robertson, F. H.
Weston, W. B. Smith Whaley,

West Virginia, was visited, and
some of the dams in that stream
were found to compare closely
with that proposed for the Con-
garee. The estimate of cost is
based on the actual figures for
which the Kanawha locks and
dams have been completed, allow-
ing for differences in length of
lock required and height of dam.
The lock is estimated as fifty-five
teet wide in the chamber and one
hundred and fifty feet between
quoins. This will admit steamers
of the size best adapted for navi-
gating the river; the lift will be
eight feet. The movable dam es-
timated for is of the wicket pattern
so successfully used on the Ka-
nawha, the width of the navigable
pass being one hundred and fifty
feet. The estimated cost of this
work is $250,000.

The improvements of the Con-
garee River will commence early
in the year 1900, and will be car- .
ried on until its completion. The work will be under the charge of Mujor
E. H. Ruffner, Corps of Engineers, U. S. Army.

It means a great deal to Columbia to have steamboat navigation to the
sea and the ports of Charleston and Georgetown, where transhipment of
freight can be made to ocean steamers.

With eleven railroads entering the city, and river navigation, her facilities
for transportation at competitive rates are equalled by but few Southern cities.
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M. C. Heath, W. T. Aycock,
I. L. Withers, A. M. Meetze.
The objects of the Association are
to maintain a Commercial Ex-
change; to promote uniformity in
the customs and usages of mer-
chants to inculeate principles of
justice and equity in trade. to
acquire and disseminate valuable
commercial and economic infor-
. mation and generally secure to its
members the benefits in the fur-
therance of their legitimate pur-
suits—the desire being to bring
about more intimate social rela-
tions among the merchants, there-
by establishing a greater degree
of confidence, by which means the
merchants may be enabled to
correct trade abuses that may
exist at any time, and also to
s promote the general interests of
'“,:',:"7' the mercantile trade and those of
————— the city, as a whole, as well. Up
to the time of its organization, the
merchants were not in touch with
each other, and when any differences occurred, as trade abuses, there was
no source to apply to receive the proper remedies. Since the organization
of this body, the merchants have been benefited by the efforts of the Asso-
ciation, and its influence and work is felt more markedly in the matter of
obtaining concessions as to freight rates that the city is entitled to, and as
being a prominent factor in placing the natural resources of the city before
those seeking for information.




ONE OF THE LANDMARKS OF COLUMBIA.

It seems hardly necessary to introduce an institution that is recognized as
one of the old landmarks of Columbia. The men that made Columbia thirty
or forty years ago are rapidly disappearing from the scenes of business strife
and activity. Many of the brave and sturdy hearts that composed Wade
Hampton’s battalion in the campaign of Virginia during the memorable period
that ensued from ’61 to ’65, have paused
by the wayside to rest and found

that sleep that merciful Death bestows
upon all mortals. Long years have
passed, many have crossed the river,
and only a few of the gallant comrades
of the Confederacy are left that marched
under the tattered, battle-scarred ban-
ner of the knightly Hampton. Alas!
ves, only few remain, but the loyalty
and valor of the silent comrades will
never be forgotten by the living.
Among the living veterans of the
famous Hampton battalion there are
few who have been blessed with a more
useful career and contented lot than
Dr. David Luther Bc;ozer, senior mem-
ber of the firm of D. L. Boozer & Sons,
Dr. David Luther Boozer
was born in Lexington, S. C., Seﬁt. 11,
1833.

dentists.

His father was a well-to-do

Dr. Boozer had met misfortune more severe in Virginia and, while he had not
conquered it, he had not allowed it to break his spirit. Resolution and energy
were still left, and with these equipments he went to work to not ounly retrieve
the past, but to build up a more substantial and successful future,

Dr. Boozer’s love for his profession and interest in its advancement has
led him to seek and obtain every device and invention of merit that had the
reputation of improving dentistry and beautifying the human teeth. His
close application to business has built up
such a lucrative practice that to-day,
more than thirty-five years after the
resumption of his business at the
close of the Civil War, Dr. Boozer has
not only all that he can attend to, but
finds an amplitude of business for his
two sons, J. William and J. Edwin, who
are joint partners in the concern, both
graduates of the University of Mary-
land, Dental Department, one of the
leading medical colleges of the country.

The Dental Establishment of Dr.
Boozer & Sons contains three of the
most thoroughly equipped offices in
this or any other State. Each office
is in charge of a specialist. Dr. Boozer
attends to extracting and making
artificial teeth. J. William Boozer’s
specialty is filling teeth and treating
diseases of the gums; while J. Edwin
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farmer of Lexington, who gave his son
the necessary educational advantages
to prepare himself for the profession of his choice, which was dentistry. The
young student had been engaged in the practice of his profession only six
months, in the establishment of Roberts & Gregg of Columbia, when the senior
partner, Roberts, died, and Dr. Boozer became a partner in the firm. Then
came the Civil War, and Dr. Boozer joined the ranks of Hampton and served
until the bitter end. On his return home his sadness was intensified by finding
his office destroyed by fire. The prospect was discouraging in the extreme, but

INTERIOR VIEW OF D. L. BOOZER & SONS’ DENTAL PARLORS.

28

Boozer’s specialty is crown and bridge

work.
Dr. Boozer’s Dental Depot is equipped with costly modern machinery

that is found in few offices in the State, among which is the electric dental
engine, cataphoresis process and many other appliances.

Dr. Boozer’s art and skill in restoring facial expresson and in pro-
ducing natural appearance after loss of the dental organs, has made for him a
wide-spread reputation.

These parlors are located at 1515 Main Street, Columbia, 8. C.




Tk .71 Shoes + Shoes + Shoes

We are getting more business every day,
and getting it on merit. But, we make no
secret of the fact, we want, and are deter-
mined to have, more business. ¢ & & %
" We buy direct from the manufacturers,
FOR CASH, with all the discounts off, and
solicit your patronage for everything in the
shoe line. Our facilities are excelled by none.
Mail Orders will receive prompt attention.

« OLD RELIABLE
E H RLI C H S ~_ SHOE HOUSES,

Nos. 1627 and 1643 MAIN STREET

JULIUS H. WALKER & COMPANY,

AGENTS FOR

The Travelers Mnsurance Co.

OF HABTFORD, CONNECTICUT,

Chartered 1863 (Stock.)

Lite and Elccident ﬁﬁsurance.

ASSETS Twenty-Six Million Dollars.

CAPITAL One Million Dollars.
SURPLUS Five Million Dollars.

RATES 15 TO 25 PER CENT. LESS
THAN THOSE OF OLD LINE
MUTUAL COMPANIES.

Fire Tnsurance

IN STRONG OLD AMERICAN aAnNp FOREIGN

COMPANIES.

All Kinds of Insurance. Real Estate Bought and Sold. Loans Negotiated.
COME AND SEE US.

THE MURRAY DRUG COMPANY

AP

UWlholesale
Druggists

1216 and 1218 Main Street,
COLUMBIA, S. C.




T. A. MGGRELERY & GOMPANY

DRY GOODS, MILLINERY, NOTIONS AND SHOES.

Our Dress Goods Department.

‘We keep ¥ine Dress SiLks, the best,
and strictly reliable BLack Goobs, and all
up-to-date novelties in Dress Fabrics.

S S S

Our Notion Stock.

You will find all the newest novelties.
A full line of Stamped Goods. Battenburg
Lace and Embroidery Silks. We are agents
for America’s Leading Corset “ W. B.” in
thirty different shapes and qualities. We
are agents for P. Centemerie & Co.’s Kid
Gloves.  “REvery pair warranted.”

Our Millinery Department.

We employ the best TALENT in the
Millinery Art, and keep the best and most
Fashionable Millinery in the State, at mod-
crate prices.

S

Our Shoe Department.

You will find the best ladies’ and chil-
dren’s Footwear at correct prices.

1642, 1644, 1646 Main Street,

COLUMBIA, S. C.

oluinbia Statlonery Go 2

(J. WILSON GIBBES, Manager.)

WHOLESALERS OF

Paper 1

‘?3@%9%9999399999%%%9%%

Paper Bags and Twines,
Printers’ and Stationers’
Sundries,
Stationery Specialties,
Fireworks.

mg%%%aé%
%eee«eéeeeeé
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1314 Main Street,
COLUMBIA, S. C.

NORRIS, COONER&CO.

WHOLESALE GROCERS. s+ COMMISSION MERCHANTS.

Give us your Trade and Bave Freight from Distant Markets.
COLUMBIA, S. C.




SEND YOUR ORDERS TO ——>

W. T. MARTIN,
—UGROGLER~

Cor Maim amd Blanding Streets,

COLUMBIA, s. C.

W. A. WINGATE,

Qolumbia Pressing Qlub

$1.00 PER MONTH.
STEAI DYEING, REPAIRING, CLEANING.

’ INTERNATIONAL TAILORING COMPANY,
SpeCIa'I Agent Imported and Domestic Fabrics. Highest qual-

ity garments at reasonable prices.
S l t For the Celebrated TATE SPRINGS MINERAT,
ole en WATER. Beston Earth for Indigestion, Kidueys,
Stomach and Liver Troubles. For sale in bottles, cases, demijohns and
barrels.

Opp. Jerome Hotel. 1512 MAIN STREHRT.

GADSDEN E. SHAND
ARCHITECTANO CIVIL ENGINEER.

W.B SMITH WHALEY, M E,
A. 8. M. E. -
MECH. AND MiLL ENGINCER.

1 WIS ECee

W &CQ

Engineers and Hrchitects.

COLUMBIA OFFICE:
1328 Main Street.

BOSTON CFFICE:
1011 & 1012 Tremont Building.

WE HAVE DESIGNED THE FOLLOWING MILLS:

Union, S. C.
Union, S. C. .
Newry, S. C.
Columbia, S. C.
Columbia, S. C.
Warrenville, S. C.
Orangeburg, S. C.
Birmingham, Ala.
Columbia, S. C.
Union, S. C.
Columbia, S. C.

Union Cotton Millls, No. 1, - - -
Union Cotton Mills, No. 2, -
Courtenay Manufacturing Co., - -
Richland Cotton Mills, - - - - -
Granby Cotton Mills, - - - - -
Warren Manufacturing Co.,, - - -
Orangeburg Manufacturing Co., - -
Avondale Mills, - - -
Olympia Cotton Mills, - - - - -
Buffalo Cotton Mills, . - - - -
Capital City Mills, - - - , - -

Besides the above, we have drawings for two other cotton mills on our boards at the
present time. We have the largest engineering and architectural office in the South, where
prompt attention is given to all kinds of architectural and engineering work. Our Boston
Office has a skilled force engaged in the designing of power plants.



dtewart Contracting Comp’y

Geperal Coplraclors and Buﬂdei's,

CoLumMBIA. S. C. SAVANNAH, GA.

Plans and specifications with estimates furnished upon short notice for any character of work.

The erection of Public Buildings, Factories, Hotels, Churches, Stores and Residences a special
feature.

Dock Building and Repairing, Dreging and Harbor Improvements executed promptly.

Rough and Cut Granite for Public Buildings, Factories, Hotels, Churches, Stores, Residences,
Retaining Walls, Bridge Piers, Foundations, Cemetery Work, Street Curbing, Macadam, Concrete,
Granolithic Sidewalks and Roofing purposes. Also Jetty Stone in quantities and sizes to suit.

WRITE FOR PRICES F. 0. B. YOUR NEAREST RAILWAY POINT.

VIEW OF SEABOARD AIR LINXE BRIDGE ACROSS CONGAREE RIVER.

Quarries: Columbia, Rockton and Rion, S. C.

THE SOUTH CAROLINA MWRBLE WORKS, | ™5 "By, RiDLINGES.

F. H. HYATT, Proprietor.

———The ‘I.a.rg'est Retail Dealer in the South in all Kinds of ———————— B A K E R A N D CO N F E CT [ O N E R
AMERICANAND ITALTAN MARBLE WORK 1007 and 1537 Main Street.

ALL KINDS OF CEMETERY WORK A SPECIALTY.
COLUMBIA, S. C. CATERING FOR PARTIES, RECEPTIONS, ETC

RGN BONID BROTHERS 29

--- SIX OF THE 1900 ORIENT &ODELS-" ' SOLE ACENTS ‘ '
Mol Moy phmia WS (e Racycle, T'tibune, Eagle, Elfin Juvemle.
3l \ = 4 T, HEADQUARTERS FOR
Repairing and Fitting of all Broken Wheels.
Renting a Specialty.
Special Attention to Out~of-Town Orders.

Womar poin/es.- SSnse
¢ (Gainless 2
— % e~ > —

WE CARRY A FULL LINE OF BICYCLE SUNDRIES.


http:NEARF.ST

Thereis Nothing Liike an lron Bed

No crevices or hiding places for pests, and no wooden slats to be continually falling
down. White Enameled and Brass Mounted. Comfort in their very looks, and
easily kept clean. Cost very little more than ramshackle Wooden Bedsteads, that
do not last’'a quarter as long. S B &2 & o & o o

‘——-\Refurmshmé the House

Doesn’t always mean buying new things throughout. It means
buying a few pieces of really good furniture for the show rooms of
the house, and retiring some of the old furniture to other rooms.
We are especially well supplied with odd pieces, and sets with few
pieces. Very often a couple of Rockers, or a Cabinet, or a China
Closet, or a Couch will make the whole room look new. & &t ¢

Come and see, even if you don’t want to buy.

J. M. VanMETRE,

1313 Main Street, - - - - Golumbia, S. G.

FITZMAURICES - FITZMAURICES

‘—\DRY G@ODS AND NOTIONS~

| Clothing aad oo’ Furnishings

1704 and 1706 MAIN STREET,
COLUMBIA, S. C.

This store has attained the reputation of keeping the best
goods at the lowest prices; liberal and courteous treatment
to all. When you contemplate anything in our line, it will ’
pay you to give us a call before buying. We make a specialty
of SiLks and DRrREss Goops. We have added GENTS’
CLOTHING, and Bovs’ CLOTHING, HATs and CAps. Special

values in these departments.




THE

'STATE,

l W. G. CHILDS, Ptesident.

BANKOorF COLUMBIA, S. C.

CITY AND COUNTY DEPOSITORY.

General Banking Business transacted with promptness.
given to collections. Correspondence solicited.

Special attention

SAVINGS DEPARTMENT.

Deposits allowed interest at the rate of 4 per cent.
per annum from date of deposit.

W. T. Mattin, Vice-President. T. H. GIBBES, Cashier.

Edward W. Parker

Real Estate Agent,

Is giving special attention to the man-

agement as well as the handling of all

classes of Real Estate. Only exclusive

real estate agent in the city. Consult

me if you wish to buy, sell or rent.

S S S

1220 MAIN STREET,.
COLUMBIA, S. C.

JOHN H. BOILLAN,
FIRC INSURANCE avo REAL ESTATE AGENT,

ANY INFORMATION CHEERFULLY GIVEN IN REGARD TO
REAL ESTATE IN AND AROUND THE CITY.

General Agent for the State for

NATIONAL SURETY COMPANY,

Issuers of
rID}:I.I'.l'Y

CONTRACTORS B
MUNICIPAL 0 n S
COMMERCIAL

GOVERNMENT

spmosr azzEETioN WAREHOUSE RECEIPT DEPARTMENT.
1505 Main Streett COLUMBIA, S. C.



R. E. BURRISS,

Manuf.cturer of and Dealer in
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Horse Furnishing Goods, Robes, Whips, Blankets, Combs,
Brushes, Oils, Sponges, Etc.

1121 PLAIN STREET, COLUMBIA, S. C.

HASELL THOMAS & CO.
Lumber and Budlding Wlaterial

S S POV

\\ Rough Lumber, & Dressed Lumber, &* Flooring, % \
Ceilings, ¢ Sidings, &# Mouldings, ¢ Etc.

\ Pine Shingles, &# Cypress Shingles,-#*-Laths, ¢ Etc.

A

\\\\‘ Doors, o* Sash and Blinds,
\

N & Paints and Oils,  Calcimo, o¢ Etc. ¢

& Lime and Hair, &

v

A\

FONRC Building Material Generally., &

5 \\
\ TV VYV VYV VY VYV VY VYVYVY VYVYVVVVYVYww

YARD AND WAREHOUSES: EAST BLANDING STREET.
GOLUMBIA, S. G.

e

R. O. JONES,

1418 MAIN STREET.

DEALER IN ALL KINDS OF

Hard and soft

COAL.

Grate, Stove, Range, Smith, Steam
and Foundry Coal.

0AK AND PINE W(OD SAWED.

—— @ P———
TELEPHONE 160.

Office and Yard Blanding Street,

East Southern Depot,

COLUMBIA, S. C.

notice.

’——JJ:N —

J. H. EPSTIN, i
. Sl
Merchant Tailonr.

Suits from $18 to $30. Trousets
from $4 to $14. Fit and work-
manship guaranteed. ¢ Cleaning,
ptessing and repairing done on short
&% A%

Old North State Ointment,
the Great Antiseptic Healer, cures Plles,
Eczema, Sore Eyes, Granulated Eye-
lids, Carbuncles, Boils, Cuts, Bruises,
old Sores, Burns Corns Bumons In-
growing Toenalls Inﬂammdtory Rheu-
matisni, Aches and Pains, Chapped
Hands and Lips, Erysipelas. It is
gsomething everybody needs. Once
used always used. For sale by all
druegists and dealers.

At wholesale by
THE MURRAY DRUG COMPANY,
COLUMBIA, S. C.

% . B




FASHIONABLE

Merchant—Tailor.

FINE IMPORTED AND DOMESTIC WOOLENS OF LATEST

DESIGNS CONSTANTLY ON HAND.

ALL WORK DONE UNDER PERSONAL SUPERVISION. LADIES' TAILORING A SPECIALTY.
1431 Main Street, COLUNMBIA, S. C.

ESTABLISHED 1880.

W. C. SWAFFIELD,

FIRE, LIFE and ACCIDENT

Insurance|

S
Real Estate Agent.
.

No. 1431 Main St., opp. Grand Central Hotel,

' COLUMBIA, S. C.

F. W. SEEGERS

Sopa WATER MANUFACTURER

AND WHOLESALE DEALER IN

HARRIS LITHIA WATER.

S S -

PHILIP MOTZ,

Carriage and Wagon
H)anufacturer.

A%
1223=-1225 Assembly Street,

COLUMBIA, S. C.

S S Y



[ONES' CARPET STORE

1530 MAIN STREET,

B
MATTINGS, | INOLEUMS,
SHADES, LLacE CURTAINS
AND SCREENS.

BICYCLES AND
" TYPEWRITERS REPAIRED.

W. B. GIBBEGS, Jr.

Ramébler, Columbia and Stearns,
Jdeal and Clipper Ricycles. |
y

THE BAKER HAMMERLESS GUN.
| ¥

TELEPHONE 195.

1240 Washington Street,
COLUMBIA, S. C.

TENNIS, GOLF
AND SPORTING GOODS.

INCORPORATED 18%4.

Plans and Estimates Furnished for Part or Complete Power Plants and Steel Bridges. Steam Pumps, Feed
Water Heaters and Hoisting Engines.

Lombard Iron Works

AND SUPPLY COr1PANY.

BUILDERS AND DEALERS IN

ENGINES and BOILERS

RAILROAD, COTTON, SAW, FERTILIZER,

Oil and Ice Machinery and Supplies and Repairs, Shafting, Pulleys,
Hangers, Leather and Rubber Belting and Hose, .

MILL SUPPLIES AND TOOLS.
FOUNDRY, MAGHINE, BOILER AND BRIDGE WORK.

CAPACITY FOR -300 HANDS.

Agents for Atlas and Erie Engines, Ashworth Cards, Korting and
Leader Injectors, Turbine Water Wheels, Etc.

AUGUSTA, GA.

FRANK P. MILBURN,

Architect and
Superintendent

CHARLOTTE, N. C.

“Correspondence Solicited.”




(COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA.)

'THE KEELEY CURE .

FOR DISEASES RESULTING
FROM THE USE OF

AvrconoLic ‘Liquors, MorpHIA and
any Narcotic Drug. Cigarettes

and Tobacco.

NoNE OTHER IN THE STATE

THE KEELEY INSTITUTE

COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA.

ADDRESS FOR INFORMATION

ESTABLISHED 1849.

Over Fifty Years of Successful Business.

®
STANLEY'S

l llll a &Lﬂl l Y ||/ -y § COPPER HALF TONE AND ZINC ETGHERS
4. \'A\ N ® s J:
\

1421 Main Street. WA X\ DESIGNERS, ENGRAVERS, ff} ¢

QA
® .

| s A SPE 3
. ¢ il R4 L - we MAKE & ClaLry
China, Glass, Earthenware and S L USTRAT

), LLUSTRATION®

House - Furnishing Goods of all ) !

kinds,

WHOLESALE AND RETAIL.

ATLANTA,GA. .
» & -

- 2

J. C. STANLEY & BRO., Proprietors.

= : JUON
R ALABAMA & FORSYTH STSNY// X

J. H. BERRY, D. M. RICHARDSON.

BERRY & RICHARDMN,

Monarch and Pierce Bicycles.
New Home, and Wheeler &
Wilson No. 9 Sewing Machines.

¥

Bicycle Repairing Department,
Bicycle Sundries, Sewing Machine Attachments
and Needles.

%

1804=-1806 Main Street,
COLUMBIA, s. C.
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4 \ W. T. GREGORY, President. T. J. HARPER, Vice-President. SAMUEL W. RHEA, Jr., Manager. 7 JOHN W. CONDER, Sec’y and Treas. §8ﬂ
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¢ GREGORY-RHEA MULE (CO. ¢
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ﬂ\ [INCORPORATED.]
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2 Feed and Sale of Live Stock

- eed and Sale of Live Stoc

AN \

§§§ 1111 to 1117 PLAIN STREET.

N _ ' ,

AN = -
Zg§ We make a specialty of

AN M U L E S Nice Saddle and Harness
N

SRy HORSES
N Carrying at all times from

J\ the smallest cotton mule to the largest On hand at all times.

Z§§ lumber mule. : i “nz

z§§ o ot ot ot

4% *

§§§ WE SELL THE BEST MAKES OF BUGGIES BUILT: ¢ “The Premium” Old Hickoiy Wagons
2 Babcock, Rock Hill, {/  BINDERS, MOWERS,

N ) HAY RAKES,

0 Hackney, Advance, % DISC HARROWS,

N AND SEVERAL CHEAPER GRADES. s GRAIN DRILLS.
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Standard Makes of

M. A. MALONE,

GEORGE A. SHIELDS' FOUNDRY.

« Write or call for Terms

y)l'a n o S and . atalogues.”

AND

Orycms
KNABE, CHICKERING,

And many other Celebrated
Makes.

B50 to 75

Under Northern Prices.

Easy terms of payment to
satisfactory purchasers.

1235 Main Street, "
COLUMBIA, S. C.

RATES, $2 .00 10 $3.00

If you want a

FARM, DWELLING or TIMBER LANDS

Write to

C. B. SITTT1ONS,
1203 Washington, St.
Columbia, S. C.

WWhen you Visit Columbia, S. C.

You Want a Central but Quiet First-Class Hotel
With Best Cuisine and Service.

E N A

Headquarters for Comfort.

For the convenience of the Com-
mercial Traveler, three large well-
lighted Sample Rooms have been
provided on the ground floor.

A A A A

Wright's Hotel

COLUMBIA, 8. C.

Mrs. 8. L. WRIGHT,
W. C. WRIGHT,
Proprietors.

ROBERT C. WRIGHT, Manager.



JOSEPH E. YOUNG. ‘ DAVID M. CALDWELL. JOHN RABAIOTTIL.

J E. YOUNG & COMPANY

WHOLESALE DEALERS IN

FOREIGN AND DOMESTIC

Fruits and Produce.

TELEPHONE 216. 1211 MAIN STREET,

References, Carolina National Bank and the trade generally. COLUMBIA, S. C.

J. E. YOUNG & COTPANY.

McMILLANS =~ |JOHN L. HUGGINS
DRUG STORE| =

(McMILLAN’S CROSSING) t
[
I

OPEN T'LL MIDNIGHT - Fancy Groceries

RARLL DAY SUNDRARY., and

NOTHING OLD IN HIS STORE. ' Eab[e Delicacies

EVERYTHING IN %8sz, ' Ko

Both 'Phones. 'Fone Orders. Al City Deliveries Free, | CORNER MAIN AND WASHINGTON STREETS.




T. S. BRYAN.

E—— s
BRYAN’S BOOK STORE AND PRINTING OFFICE.

MOULDINGS in great variety.

PRINTERS

R. B. BRYAN.

R. L. BRYAN & CO.

WHOLESALE AND RETAIL DEALERS IN

School Law and Library Books

Commercial Printing, Binding, Ruling. Catalogues a Specialty.

STATIONERY

Writing Papers, Blank Books, Ete., for Schools, Offices, Ete.
PICTURE FRAMES made to order.
1425 Main Street, COLUMBIA, 8. C.

FARMERS' AND MECHANICS
Mercantile and Manufacturmg Go.

COLUMBIA. S. C.

GROCERIES,

Hardware, Stoves, Harness, Saddles, Crockery, G]asswm'e,
Cutlery, Guns, Pistols, Drugs, Jewelry.

DRY GOODS,

Notions, Millinery, Collars, Cuffs, Neckwear, H: ltq, Clothing,
Boots, Shoes, Leather, Furniture.

ASK FOR WHAT YOU DO NOT SEE.

HOWIE BROTHER,

s to HOWIE & SONS.

N4 ./
n

MANUFACTURERS OF

Cotton Presses

BURDICK'S ROTARY HARROW,

REPAIRING OF COTTON GINS A
SPECIALTY.

COLUMBIA, 8. C.

lr

HOWIE BROTHERS
PLANING MILL,

COLUMBIA, S. C.

PRICE LIST FOR DRESSING LUMBER.

PER 100 FEET
Weather Boarding, . . . $o 20
One Side, W, . . . . . 20
Two Sides, . . . . . . 30
Flooring, . . . . . . . .25

MGULDINGS OF EVERY DESGRIPTION.

Door and Window Frames.

TURNING and SCROLL WORK of all Kinds.

812 LADY STREET.
811 GERVAIS STREET.



éd.WPETERMANN.Jﬁ\E\STIMATES ON ALL WORK IN OUR LINE CHEERFULLY GIVEN

GEO.AWAGENER
% . — J.W. PETERMANN PREST&TREASR.
¥ 7 W.L.DAGGETT MANAGER & SEcC.

(T TN

I A 1 ot

V|

’ »/4’//“) - 7
2 XX )P

DRINTERS *INDERS.

CHARLESTON, S. C.

PHONES
. BELL
%\ GORDON I

i)
JaN)

/S

% 5 i

T will contain a full and comprehensive
resume of the history of the State, from

PUBLISHERS OF

the days of its earliest inseption up to

and including the present day, with special
Biographical and Statistical resumes of
her Agricultural, Mineral, Manufacturing,
Mechanical, Mercantile, Transportation,
Climatic, Educational, Soctal and general
interests. These sketches will be profusely
illustrated with the highest class of art
engravings illustrative of their various
subjects. Each and every City, Town and
County within the confines of the State
will be authentically written upon, and so
arranged that the topographical and other
intetests of each may be easily ascertained.

TogrCdd e

The edition will be very large, printed The
upon the finest quality of tone paper and
handsomely bound, and will be carefully Greatest
distributed, not only throughout our own W, k
i State, but through the medium of transpor- or
tation companies, municipal bodies, boards on
. of trade, iness leagues, chambers of h
‘ commerce, agricultural and immigration the 0
; bureaus, hotels, clubs, etc.; placed on file State
! and thoroughly distributed throughout the
' South, the East, the West and Northwest. Ever HI,O I” a
] in

Print.

Ao

WE MAKE A
SPECIALTY
OF .2
CATALOGUE
AND .22
BOOK WORK

A

Send in
Your
Application
For a
Copy.
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